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Law Officer (International Law)

Department of Justice

International Law Division

47/F High Block, Queensway Government Offices

66 Queensway

Hong Kong

Dear Mr. Wingfield,

Re:
New Hague Convention on Maintenance Obligation

In reply to your letter of 15th September 2004, we have carefully considered the question of whether there is any need for the courts in Hong Kong to apply foreign law in maintenance cases, and we have concluded that we see no need to do so for the following reasons:-

1.
Currently, the courts in HK cannot make a maintenance decision based on foreign law, except in cases of reciprocal recognition and enforcement under the Maintenance Orders (Reciprocal Enforcement) Ordinance (Cap. 188) which 

            applied to certain maintenance decisions made in a jurisdiction designated in that Ordinance, i.e., as the law now stands, whenever the Hong Kong courts assume jurisdiction over a matrimonial cause it will apply Hong Kong Law except in cases of recognition and enforcement of foreign orders.  This is also the position of the English courts.

2.
The Hong Kong court has jurisdiction over a divorce/judicial separation suit if either of the parties to a marriage is domiciled in Hong Kong at the time of the petition, or was habitually resident in Hong Kong throughout the period of three years immediately preceding the petition, or had a substantial connection with Hong Kong at the time of the petition.  The doctrine of forum non conveniens  will enable the court to order a stay of proceedings if it can be shown that the court of a foreign state is clearly and distinctly the most appropriate forum for the resolution of the dispute between the parties.  A combination of the above  principles ensure that matrimonial causes that come before the Hong Kong courts will posses a certain degree of connection with Hong Kong.  In these circumstances we do not perceive that there is any unfairness or injustice for Hong Kong law to be applied in deciding upon financial provisions consequential upon the parties’ divorce.  If one of the parties wishes the law of his or her domicile to govern his/her divorce or financial relief it is always open to him/her to resort to the courts of his/her domicile for the purpose of divorce proceedings.

3.
We acknowledge that in a number of areas the Hong Kong Courts will apply foreign law, for example in contract (where there is an express or implied choice of proper law in favour of a law other than Hong Kong law), in tort (under the so-called “double-actionability rule” where the court is obliged to consider whether the tort would be actionable under the lex loci delictiones), or in cases involving testamentary capacity.  However, in the area of family law and maintenance obligations, the question of choice of law is inextricably linked with that of jurisdiction.  The court’s power (jurisdiction) to make a particular type of order is linked with the substantive considerations as to whether the one type of order should be preferred over another.  By way of further example, the rule (embodied in section 14 of the Matrimonial Proceedings and Property Ordinance (cap. 192) which renders void any provision in a maintenance agreement which ousts the jurisdiction of the court can be regarded as both jurisdictional and substantive in nature.  If we are to have a system whereby (i) the Hong Kong courts are to have jurisdiction to make orders for financial provision but (ii) in exercising such jurisdiction the Hong Kong courts are allowed to apply foreign law in making such orders (or make orders which previously could only have been made by foreign courts) there will have to be a monumental overhaul of the our legislation governing financial relief.  We are not convinced of any need for such an overhaul.

4.
A related point is this – in applying foreign law the main aim is obviously to try to administer that law in as close a manner as the foreign court would itself have applied it.  It is not a complete answer to say that Hong Kong courts can always receive expert evidence on foreign law dealing with financial provision on divorce (in the same way as it receives expert evidence on, say, foreign law of contract).  Foreign rules of contract or tort encountered in the Hong Kong courts are likely to be more “black-letter” in nature (whether a particular head of damage is recoverable, whether a particular event constitutes a defence) and more susceptible to adversarial adjudication between competing expert witnesses.  By way of contrast, rules governing financial provision in divorce cases are very often highly flexible and discretionary in nature (our own system is a prime example), and call for great experience and familiarity with not only the black-letter rules but the legal and social culture within which those rules are administered, as the social background of the parties is a very relevant consideration.  We doubt whether, with the best will in the world, the Hong Kong court can satisfactorily administer the many-and-varied financial provision regimes prevailing in other parts of the world.

5.
Lastly we make the point that we do not think it is right (insofar as this is intended as part of the proposed scheme) that parties should be able to “contract for” a particular regime governing their divorce or financial provisions during the process of divorce or consequential upon divorce.  Divorce deals with the family status of a person and our rules of property distribution on divorce reflect certain societal values we attach to family life and it is inappropriate to deal with this area of the law in the same way as one deals with commerce (where the notions of freedom of choice and freedom of contract prevail).

6.
For all the above reasons we do not believe that a sufficient case has been made out for enabling or allowing the Hong Kong court to apply foreign law in ancillary relief and maintenance cases, except in the areas of recognition and enforcement as mentioned above under Cap. 188.










Yours sincerely,










Edward Chan SC










Chairman
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